



PERTH, FRIDAY, 17 JUNE 2016 No. 102

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY JOHN A. STRIJK, GOVERNMENT PRINTER AT 12.00 NOON © STATE OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA

CONTENTS

PART 1	
	Page
City of Stirling—	
Bee Keeping Amendment Local Law 2016	2107
Dogs Amendment Local Law 2016	2109
Fencing Amendment Local Law 2016	2108
Electoral (Ballot Paper Forms) Amendment Regulations 2016	2087
Health Regulations Amendment (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2016	2101
Health Services (Day Hospital Facility) Determination 2016	2098
Hospitals Regulations Amendment (Licensing and Conduct Fees) Regulations 2016	2099
Hospitals (Services Charges for Compensable Patients) Amendment Determination 2016	2106
Local Government (Bayswater and Swan - Change of Boundaries) Order 2016	2110
Local Government (Wyndham-East Kimberley – Requirement for Council to Undertake	
Remedial Action) Order 2016	2111
Rottnest Island Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2016	2112
Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Amendment Regulations 2016	2089
Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Amendment Regulations 2016	2091
Workers' Compensation and Injury Management (Section 10) Notice 2016	2114

PART 2

Agriculture and Food	2116
Deceased Estates	2130
Heritage	2119
Justice	
Local Government	2120
Minerals and Petroleum	2122
Planning	2125
Premier and Cabinet.	2130
Public Notices	2132

IMPORTANT COPYRIGHT NOTICE

© State of Western Australia

This work is copyright. Apart from any use as permitted under the *Copyright Act 1968*, no part may be reproduced by any process without written permission from the Attorney General for Western Australia. Inquiries in the first instance should be directed to the Government Printer, State Law Publisher, 10 William St, Perth 6000.

PUBLISHING DETAILS

The Western Australian *Government Gazette* is published by State Law Publisher for the State of Western Australia on Tuesday and Friday of each week unless disrupted by Public Holidays or unforeseen circumstances.

Special *Government Gazettes* containing notices of an urgent or particular nature are published periodically.

The following guidelines should be followed to ensure publication in the Government Gazette.

- Material submitted to the Executive Council prior to gazettal will require a copy of the signed Executive Council Minute Paper.
- Copy must be lodged with the Sales and Editorial Section, State Law Publisher no later than 12 noon on Wednesday (Friday edition) or 12 noon on Friday (Tuesday edition).

Delivery address:

State Law Publisher

Lower Ground Floor,

10 William St. Perth, 6000

Telephone: 6552 6000 Fax: 9321 7536

- Inquiries regarding publication of notices can be directed to the Publications Officer on (08) 6552 6012.
- Lengthy or complicated notices should be forwarded early to allow for preparation. Failure to observe this request could result in the notice being held over.

If it is necessary through isolation or urgency to email or fax copy, confirmation is not required by post. *If original copy is forwarded later and published, the cost will be borne by the advertiser.*

ADVERTISING RATES AND PAYMENTS

EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JULY 2015 (Prices include GST).

Deceased Estate notices (per estate)—\$30.75

Articles in Public Notices Section—\$71.50 minimum charge (except items of an exceptionally large nature. In these instances arrangements will be made for pricing the notice at time of lodging).

All other Notices—

Per Column Centimetre—\$14.25

Bulk Notices—\$261.00 per page

Electronic copies of gazette notices sent to clients for lodgement with the Delegated Legislation Committee—\$47.00

Clients who have an account will only be invoiced for charges over \$50.

For charges under \$50, clients will need to supply credit card details at time of lodging notice (i.e. a notice under 4cm would not be invoiced).

Clients without an account will need to supply credit card details or pay at time of lodging the notice.

— PART 1 —

ELECTORAL

EL301*

Electoral Act 1907

Electoral (Ballot Paper Forms) Amendment Regulations 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

1. Citation

These regulations are the *Electoral (Ballot Paper Forms) Amendment Regulations 2016.*

2. Commencement

These regulations take effect in accordance with section 213(6) of the Act.

3. Regulations amended

These regulations amend the *Electoral (Ballot Paper Forms) Regulations 1990*.

4. Schedule 1 amended

(1) Delete Schedule 1 Form A.

(2) Delete Schedule 1 Form D and insert:

Form D: Ballot paper for an election in a region if there are one or more groups and one or more voting tickets are registered.

Western Australia

Ballot Paper

Election of (a) members of the Legislative Council

YOU MAY VOTE IN ONE OF TWO WAYS **Either** Above the line Fill in one box (e) <u>only</u> Put the number 1 in the box to (f) (f) (f) (h) (h) show the voting ticket you want (c) Or Below the (i) (i) (i) (j) line Fill in every box Number the (i) boxes from 1 to (d) in the order of your choice of candidate (i) (i)

(a) Insert the number of members to be elected.

(i)

- (b) Insert the name of the region.
- (c) If there is only one voting ticket registered in relation to the election, substitute the following instruction
 - "Put the number 1 in the box to choose the voting ticket of the candidate/group."
- (d) Insert the number of candidates.
- (e) If there is a voting ticket square for the group, insert name of political party, or composite name of political parties, or "Independent", if to be printed.
- (f) Print voting ticket square if a voting ticket is registered by or on behalf of the group.

- (g) If there is a voting ticket square for the candidate insert name of political party, or composite name of political parties, or "Independent", if to be printed.
- (h) Print voting ticket square if a voting ticket is registered by or on behalf of the candidate.
- (i) Insert name of candidate.
- (j) Insert name of political party, or composite name of political parties, or "Independent", if to be printed.

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

ENVIRONMENT

EV301*

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2007

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Amendment Regulations 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

1. Citation

These regulations are the *Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Amendment Regulations 2016*.

2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

3. Regulations amended

These regulations amend the *Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Regulations 2008*.

4. Regulation 17 amended

- (1) Before regulation 17(1) insert:
 - (1A) In this regulation —

Levy regulations means the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Regulations 2008.

- (2) Delete regulation 17(2)(c) and (d) and insert:
 - (c) in the case of a category 63 licensed landfill, each of the following that is applicable in the case
 - (i) the volume of waste disposed of to landfill calculated under regulation 10(7) of the Levy regulations;
 - (ii) the volume of exempt waste estimated by the licensee under regulation 10(8) of the Levy regulations;
 - (iii) the volume of waste disposed of to landfill estimated by the licensee under regulation 12A(2)(a) of the Levy regulations;
 - (iv) the volume of exempt waste estimated by the licensee under regulation 12A(2)(b) of the Levy regulations;
 - (d) in the case of a category 64 or 65 licensed landfill, each of the following that is applicable in the case
 - (i) the weight of waste weighed under regulation 8(2) of the Levy regulations;
 - (ii) the weight of exempt waste weighed under regulation 8(2) of the Levy regulations;
 - (iii) the weight of waste disposed of to landfill estimated by the licensee under regulation 9(1) of the Levy regulations;
 - (iv) the weight of exempt waste estimated by the licensee under regulation 9(2A) of the Levy regulations;

5. Regulation 18 amended

In regulation 18(2) delete "regulation 17 and any estimate made under the *Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Regulations* 2008 regulation 9 or 11," and insert:

regulation 17,

6. Various references to "Penalty:" amended

In the provisions listed in the Table delete "Penalty:" and insert:

Penalty for this subregulation:

Table

r. 7(3)	r. 15(1)
r. 16(1) and (4)	r. 17(6)
r. 18(2)	

K. H. ANDREWS, Clerk of the Executive Council.

EV302*

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Act 2007 Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Act 2007

Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Amendment Regulations 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council on the recommendation of the Minister.

1. Citation

These regulations are the *Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Amendment Regulations 2016*.

2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

3. Regulations amended

These regulations amend the Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Levy Regulations 2008.

4. Regulation 3 amended

In regulation 3(1) insert in alphabetical order:

metropolitan region has the meaning given in the *Planning and Development Act 2005* section 4(1);

5. Regulation 4 amended

Delete regulation 4(2).

6. Regulation 5 amended

In regulation 5(3) after "category 63 licensed landfill" insert:

in the metropolitan region

7. Regulation 8 replaced

Delete regulation 8 and insert:

8. Category 64 or 65 licensed landfill with weighbridge

- (1) The application of this regulation to a licensee is subject to any exemption granted on application under regulation 5(2) from the requirement under this regulation to weigh waste on a weighbridge.
- (2) Waste that is received at a category 64 or 65 licensed landfill with a weighbridge, for disposal to landfill, is to be weighed on the weighbridge at the time of delivery.
- (3) The weight of the waste as shown at the weighbridge, less the weight of any portion of that waste for which an exemption granted on application under regulation 5(1) is in effect, is to be the weight used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(2).
- (4) If waste that is received at a category 64 or 65 licensed landfill with a weighbridge, for disposal to landfill, is not weighed on the weighbridge at the time of delivery, the CEO may estimate the weight of that waste and the estimated weight is to be the weight used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(2).
- (5) The CEO must give written notice to the licensee of any estimation made under subregulation (4).

8. Regulation 9 amended

(1) In regulation 9(1) delete "when waste is received at the licensed landfill, the licensee is to estimate the weight of that waste in the approved manner, and the estimated weight is to be the weight that is used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12." and insert:

and waste is received at the licensed landfill, the licensee is to estimate, in the approved manner, the weight of that waste disposed of to landfill during any return period.

- (2) After regulation 9(1) insert:
 - (2A) If waste is received at a licensed landfill referred to in subregulation (1)(a) or (b) and disposed of to landfill during a return period, the licensee of the landfill is to estimate, in the approved manner, the weight of any portion of that waste for which an exemption granted on application under regulation 5(1) is in effect.
 - (2B) The weight of waste estimated under subregulation (1), less the weight of exempt waste estimated under subregulation (2A), is to be the weight used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(2).
 - (2C) If a licensee does not estimate the weight of waste in accordance with subregulation (1) for a return period, the CEO may estimate the weight of that waste and the estimated weight is to be the weight used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(2).
- (3) In regulation 9(2) delete "regulation 12." and insert: regulation 12(2).
- (4) In regulation 9(3) delete "licensed landfill." and insert: premises.
- (5) After regulation 9(3) insert:
 - (4) The CEO must give written notice to the licensee of any estimation made under subregulation (2C).

(5) The CEO must give written notice to the occupier of the premises of any estimation made under subregulation (2).

Note: The heading to amended regulation 9 is to read:

Other category 64 or 65 landfill premises

9. Regulation 10 amended

- (1) In regulation 10(2):
 - (a) after "licensed landfill" insert:

in the metropolitan region

(b) in the Penalty delete "Penalty:" and insert:

Penalty for this subregulation:

(2) In regulation 10(5) after "licensed landfill" insert:

in the metropolitan region

(3) In regulation 10(6) in the Penalty delete "Penalty:" and insert:

Penalty for this subregulation:

- (4) Delete regulation 10(8) and insert:
 - (8) If waste is received at a category 63 licensed landfill in the metropolitan region and disposed of to landfill during a return period, the licensee of the landfill is to estimate, in the approved manner, the number of cubic metres of any portion of that waste for which an exemption granted on application under regulation 5(1) is in effect.
 - (9) The volume of waste calculated by the surveyor under subregulation (7), less the volume of exempt waste estimated under subregulation (8), is to be the volume used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(1).

Note: The heading to amended regulation 10 is to read:

Category 63 licensed landfills in metropolitan region

10. Regulation 11 amended

(1) In regulation 11(1) and (2) after "licensed landfill" insert:

in the metropolitan region

- (2) After regulation 11(2) insert:
 - (3A) The volume of waste estimated under subregulation (2) is to be the volume used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(1).
- (3) In regulation 11(3) delete "given" and insert:

give

- (4) In regulation 11(4):
 - (a) delete "premises —" and insert:

premises in the metropolitan region —

(b) delete "regulation 12." and insert:

regulation 12(1).

(5) In regulation 11(5) delete "licensed landfill." and insert:

landfill premises.

(6) Delete regulation 11(6) and (7).

Note: The heading to amended regulation 11 is to read:

CEO estimates for certain category 63 premises in metropolitan region

11. Regulations 12A, 12B and 12C inserted

After regulation 11 insert:

12A. Category 63 licensed landfills outside metropolitan region

(1) In this regulation —

waste means waste collected within the metropolitan region irrespective of when it is collected.

- (2) If waste is received at a category 63 licensed landfill outside the metropolitan region and disposed of to landfill during a return period, the licensee of the landfill
 - (a) is to estimate, in the approved manner, the number of cubic metres of that waste; and
 - (b) is to estimate, in the approved manner, the number of cubic metres of any portion of that waste for which an exemption granted on application under regulation 5(1) is in effect.
- (3) The volume of waste estimated under subregulation (2)(a), less the volume of exempt waste estimated under subregulation (2)(b), is to be the volume used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(1).
- (4) If a licensee does not estimate the number of cubic metres of waste in accordance with subregulation (2)(a) for a return period, the CEO may estimate the number of cubic metres of that waste for the return period and the estimated volume is to be the volume used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(1).
- (5) For the purposes of subregulation (4) the CEO may cause a survey of the kind referred to in regulation 10(2)(a) or (5) to be conducted in respect of the landfill premises.
- (6) The CEO must give written notice to the licensee of any estimation made under subregulation (4).

12B. Category 63 unlicensed landfills outside metropolitan region

(1) In this regulation —

unlicensed premises means premises —

- (a) in respect of which the occupier does not hold a licence as required under the EP Act; and
- (b) that would, if the occupier of the premises held a licence as required under the EP Act, be a category 63 licensed landfill;

waste means waste collected within the metropolitan region irrespective of when it is collected.

(2) If waste is received at unlicensed premises outside the metropolitan region and disposed of to landfill during a return period, the CEO may estimate the number of cubic metres of that waste and that number is to be used for the purpose of determining the amount of the levy under regulation 12(1).

- (3) For the purposes of subregulation (2) the CEO may cause a survey of the kind referred to in regulation 10(2)(a) or (5) to be conducted in respect of the landfill premises.
- (4) The CEO must give written notice to the occupier of the premises of any estimation made under subregulation (2).

12C. CEO's costs recoverable

- (1) The costs incurred by the CEO under regulation 8(4), 9(2C) or (2), 11(1), (2) or (4), 12A(4) or 12B(2) for the purpose of determining the amount of levy payable by a person under regulation 12(1) or (2) may be included in the amount of levy payable by that person and, if so included, are recoverable accordingly.
- (2) The CEO may call on or use the financial assurance provided by the licensee under the *Waste Avoidance* and *Resource Recovery Regulations 2008* regulation 15 to cover any costs incurred under regulation 8(4), 9(2C), 11(1) or (2) or 12A(4) that are included in the amount of levy payable by a person.

12. Regulation 12 amended

(1) In regulation 12(1) in the description of the variable "V" delete "in accordance with regulation 10 or estimated under regulation 11(2) or (4); and" and insert:

or estimated in accordance with regulation 10, 11, 12A or 12B; and

(2) In regulation 12(2) in the description of the variable "W" after "determined" insert:

or estimated

Recommended

Minister for Environment.

K. H. ANDREWS, Clerk of the Executive Council.

HEALTH

HE301*

Health Services Act 2016

Health Services (Day Hospital Facility) Determination 2016

Made by the Minister under section 8(2) of the Act.

1. Citation

This determination is the *Health Services (Day Hospital Facility) Determination 2016.*

2. Commencement

This determination comes into operation on the day on which the *Health Services Act 2016* section 262(5) comes into operation.

3. Health services provided by day hospital facility

(1) In this clause —

mental illness has the meaning given in the *Mental Health Act 2014* section 4;

multi-disciplinary team means a team of health professionals that includes at least one psychiatrist, one clinical psychologist, one registered mental health nurse, one occupational therapist and one social worker;

procedure means an elective surgical or medical procedure; *psychiatrist* has the meaning given in the *Mental Health Act 2014* section 4.

- (2) The following health services are determined for the purposes of the definition of *day hospital facility* in section 8(1) of the Act
 - (a) a procedure that involves the administration of a general, spinal or epidural anaesthetic;
 - (b) a procedure performed under sedation, plexus blockade or Biers Block;
 - (c) a procedure that involves the invasion of a sterile body cavity;
 - (d) peritoneal dialysis and haemodialysis for the treatment of end stage renal failure;
 - (e) a psychiatric treatment programme that
 - (i) is for a patient who has a mental illness; and

- (ii) is provided by a multi-disciplinary team under the direction and supervision of a psychiatrist; and
- (iii) is a half or full day programme that consists of more than one type of mainstream therapeutic activity.

J. DAY, Minister for Health.

HE302*

Hospitals and Health Services Act 1927

Hospitals Regulations Amendment (Licensing and Conduct Fees) Regulations 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

Part 1 — Preliminary

1. Citation

These regulations are the *Hospitals Regulations Amendment* (*Licensing and Conduct Fees*) Regulations 2016.

2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on 1 July 2016.

Part 2 — Hospitals (Licensing and Conduct of Private Hospitals) Regulations 1987 amended

3. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Hospitals (Licensing and Conduct of Private Hospitals) Regulations 1987.*

4. Schedule 1 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 1 it. 1	1 132	1 180
Sch. 1 it. 2	242	650
	605	850
	1 210	1 250
	1 815	1 850
Sch. 1 it. 3	328	340
Sch. 1 it. 4	1 815	5 000
	2 420	6 500
	3 630	7 500
	6 050	10 000

Part 3 — Hospitals (Licensing and Conduct of Private Psychiatric Hostels) Regulations 1997 amended

5. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Hospitals* (*Licensing and Conduct of Private Psychiatric Hostels*) Regulations 1997.

6. Schedule 1 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 1 it. 1	1 132	1 180
Sch. 1 it. 2	242	650
	605	850
	1 210	1 250
	1 815	1 850
Sch. 1 it. 3	328	340
Sch. 1 it. 4	1 815	5 000
	2 420	6 500
	3 630	7 500
	6 050	10 000

HE303*

Food Act 2008
Health Act 1911
Hospitals and Health Services Act 1927
Radiation Safety Act 1975
Tobacco Products Control Act 2006

Health Regulations Amendment (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

Part 1 — Preliminary

1. Citation

These regulations are the *Health Regulations Amendment (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2016.*

2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) Part 1 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on 1 July 2016.

Part 2 — Food Regulations 2009 amended

3. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Food Regulations 2009*.

4. Schedule 2 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 2 it. 1	\$165	\$175
Sch. 2 it. 2	\$160	\$175
Sch. 2 it. 3	\$166	\$180
Sch. 2 it. 4	\$60	\$65
Sch. 2 it. 5	\$165	\$180

Part 3 — Health (Pesticides) Regulations 2011 amended

5. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Health (Pesticides) Regulations 2011*.

6. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 amend the fees in the Schedule as set out in the Table.

Table

Delete	Insert
320 (each occurrence)	340
23 (each occurrence)	25
12 (each occurrence)	13
160 (each occurrence)	170
114	123

Part 4 — Health (Treatment of Sewage and Disposal of Effluent and Liquid Waste) Regulations 1974 amended

7. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Health (Treatment of Sewage and Disposal of Effluent and Liquid Waste) Regulations 1974.*

8. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 item 2(a) delete "46.50" and insert:

51.00

Part 5 — Hospitals (Services Charges) Regulations 1984 amended

9. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Hospitals (Services Charges) Regulations 1984.*

10. Schedule 1 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

η	Γ_{Δ}	h	٦
	ı a	n	е

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 1 it. 1(b)(i)	\$622	\$629
Sch. 1 it. 1(b)(ii)	\$339	\$343
Sch. 1 it. 1(e)	\$2 113	\$2 266
Sch. 1 it. 4(b)	\$245	\$270
Sch. 1 it. 6(b)	\$279	\$282
Sch. 1 it. 6(d)	\$1 708	\$2 024
Sch. 1 it. 7	\$37.10	\$37.50

Part 6 — Radiation Safety (General) Regulations 1983 amended

11. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Radiation Safety (General) Regulations 1983*.

12. Schedule XV amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	160	175
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	320 (each occurrence)	350
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	630 (each occurrence)	690
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	1 260	1 380
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	950	1 045
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1(1)	1 900	2 090
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1A	150	165
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 1A	300	330
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 2	150	165
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 2	300	330

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(a)	160	175
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(a)	320	350
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(b)	320	350
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(b)	630	690
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(c)	630	690
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(c)	1 260	1 380
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(d)	950	1 045
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 3(d)	1 900	2 090
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 4(a) and (b)	65	70
Sch. XV Pt. 1 it. 4(a) and (b)	130	140
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 1	75	80
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 1	150	160
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 1	300	320
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 1	450	480
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 1A	75	80
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 2(a)	75	80
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 2(b)	150	160
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 2(c)	300	320
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 2(d)	450	480
Sch. XV Pt. 2 it. 3(a) and (b)	30	33

Part 7 — Radiation Safety (Qualifications) Regulations 1980 amended

13. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Radiation Safety (Qualifications) Regulations 1980.*

14. Schedule 2 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 2 it. 1(a)	665.00	700.00
Sch. 2 it. 1(b)	335.00	350.00
Sch. 2 it. 1(c)	665.00	700.00
Sch. 2 it. 1(d)	335.00	350.00
Sch. 2 it. 2	35.00	38.00

Part 8 — Tobacco Products Control Regulations 2006 amended

15. Regulations amended

This Part amends the *Tobacco Products Control Regulations* 2006.

16. Various fees amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
r. 25(1)(a) and (b)	\$60.00	\$65.00
r. 25(1)(c)	\$150.00	\$163.00
r. 25(2)(a) and (b)	\$180.00	\$190.00
r. 25(2)(c)	\$450.00	\$487.00
r. 26(a) and (b)	\$204.00	\$220.00
r. 26(c)	\$510.00	\$550.00
r. 27	\$60.00	\$65.00
r. 28 and 29	\$30.00	\$32.00

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

HE304*

Hospitals and Health Services Act 1927 Hospitals (Services Charges) Regulations 1984

Hospitals (Services Charges for Compensable Patients) Amendment Determination 2016

Made by the Minister for Health.

1. Citation

This determination is the *Hospitals* (Services Charges for Compensable Patients) Amendment Determination 2016.

2. Commencement

This determination comes into operation as follows —

- (a) clauses 1 and 2 on the day on which this determination is published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the determination on 1 July 2016.

3. Determination amended

This determination amends the *Hospitals* (Services Charges for Compensable Patients) Determination 2005.

4. Schedule 1 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 1 it. 1	\$2 070	\$2 262
Sch. 1 it. 2	\$1 598	\$1 746
Sch. 1 it. 2A	\$2 219	\$2 425
Sch. 1 it. 3	\$279	\$282
Sch. 1 it. 4	\$5 467	\$6 073
Sch. 1 it. 6	\$245	\$270
Sch. 1 it. 8	\$245	\$270
Sch. 1 it. 9(a)	\$1 652	\$1 547
Sch. 1 it. 9(aa)	\$2 294	\$2 148
Sch. 1 it. 9(b)	\$2 140	\$2 004

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

LG302*

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995

City of Stirling

BEE KEEPING AMENDMENT LOCAL LAW 2016

Under the powers conferred by the *Local Government Act 1995* and under all other powers enabling it, the Council of the City of Stirling resolved on 31 May 2016 to make the following local law.

1. Citation

This local law may be cited as the City of Stirling Bee Keeping Amendment Local Law 2016.

2. Commencement

This local law comes into operation 14 days after the date of publication in the *Government Gazette*.

3. Principal local law

This local law amends the *City of Stirling Bee Keeping Local Law 2008* as published in the *Government Gazette* on 12 December 2008.

4. Clause 1.5 amended

In clause 1.5—

- (a) delete the definition for bee hive, Beekeepers Act, Certificate of Registration and Certificate of Hive Brand;
- (b) in the definition for *permit* after ";" delete "and";
- (c) in the definition for permit holder delete "." and insert "; and"; and
- (d) insert the following definitions in alphabetical order—
 - "bee hive" means a moveable or fixed structure, container or object, either standing alone or in a group of 2 or more, which contains a bees nest and in which bees are kept;
 - "beekeeper" has the meaning given to it by the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013;
 - "registered beekeeper" means a person who is registered as a beekeeper under regulation 13(7) of the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Identification and Movement of Stock and Apiaries) Regulations 2013.

5. Clause 2.1 amended

In clause 2.1 after "A person" insert "who is a registered beekeeper".

6. Clause 2.2 amended

- (1) In clause 2.2(1) delete "An" and insert "A registered beekeeper who is an".
- (2) Delete clause 2.2(2) and insert—
 - (2) An application for a permit must—
 - (a) be in the form determined by the City;
 - (b) include—
 - (i) a written consent signed by the owner of the land on which the bee hives are to be kept—unless the applicant is the owner of that land:
 - (ii) a certified copy of the details recorded in, or an extract from, the register kept under regulation 16 of the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Identification and Movement of Stock and Apiaries) Regulations 2013 relating to the applicant's registration as a registered beekeeper; and
 - (iii) any further information that may be required by the City; and
 - (c) pay any application fee imposed by the Council under sections 6.16—6.19 of the Act.

7. Clause 2.3 amended

Delete clause 2.3(3) and insert—

- (3) If the City approves an application, it is to issue to the applicant a permit in the form determined by the City.
- (4) The City may vary a condition to which a permit is subject by giving written notice to the permit holder and the varied condition takes effect 7 days after that notice is given.

- (5) A permit holder must comply with each condition to which the permit is subject including any varied condition under subclause (4).
- (6) A permit is valid from the date of issue until it is cancelled under this local law.
- (7) A permit is personal to the permit holder and applies only to the land described in the permit.

8. Clause 2.4 amended

- (1) In clause 2.4 after "City", delete "may" and insert "must".
- (2) Delete subclause (b) and insert—
 - (b) the permit holder ceases to be a registered beekeeper;

9. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 insert the following penalties in numerical order—

Clause	Description	Modified Penalty \$
2.1	Keeping of 3 or more bee hives by a registered beekeeper without a permit	200
2.3(5)	Failure to comply with a condition of a permit	200
3.1	Failure to comply with a notice	200

Dated: 7 June 2016.

The Common Seal of the City of Stirling was affixed by authority of a resolution of the Council in the presence of—

 $\begin{array}{c} {\rm GIOVANNI\ ITALIANO\ JP,\ Mayor.} \\ {\rm STUART\ JARDINE,\ Chief\ Executive\ Officer.} \end{array}$

LG303*

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995

City of Stirling

FENCING AMENDMENT LOCAL LAW 2016

Under the powers conferred by the *Local Government Act 1995* and under all other powers enabling it, the Council of the City of Stirling resolved on 31 May 2016 to make the following local law.

1. Citation

This local law may be cited as the City of Stirling Fencing Amendment Local Law 2016.

2. Commencement

This local law comes into operation 14 days after the date of publication in the Government Gazette.

3. Principal local law

This local law amends the City of $Stirling\ Fencing\ Local\ Law\ 2008$ as published in the $Government\ Gazette$ on 12 March 2009 and as amended and published in the $Government\ Gazette$ on 15 April 2011.

4. Clause 1.5 amended

In clause 1.5 delete the definition for rural lot and special rural lot.

5. Clause 2.2 amended

- (1) In clause 2.2(1)—
 - (a) in subclause (a) after ";", insert " and";
 - (b) in subclause (b) after "Schedule 1", delete ";" and insert "."; and
 - (c) delete subclauses (c), (d) and (e).
- (2) In clause 2.2(2)—
 - (d) in subclause (a) after ";", insert "or";
 - (e) in subclause (b) after "Schedule 2", delete "; or" and insert "."; and
 - (f) delete subclause (c).

6. Clause 3.2 amended

Delete clause 3.2(5).

7. Clause 4.1 amended

In clause 4.1(1) after "lot", delete "other than a rural lot, ".

8. Schedule 3 deleted

Schedule 3 is deleted.

Dated: 7 June 2016.

The Common Seal of the City of Stirling was affixed by authority of a resolution of the Council in the presence of—

GIOVANNI ITALIANO JP, Mayor. STUART JARDINE, Chief Executive Officer.

LG301*

DOG ACT 1976 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995

City of Stirling

DOGS AMENDMENT LOCAL LAW 2016

Under the powers conferred by the *Dog Act 1976, Local Government Act 1995* and under all other powers enabling it, the Council of the City of Stirling resolved on 31 May 2016 to make the following local law.

1. Citation

This local law may be cited as the City of Stirling Dogs Amendment Local Law 2016.

2. Commencement

This local law comes into operation 14 days after the date of publication in the *Government Gazette*.

3. Principal local law

This local law amends the *City of Stirling Dogs Local Law 2008* as published in the *Government Gazette* on 12 December 2008 and as amended and published in the *Government Gazette* on 15 April 2011 and 20 September 2013.

4. Clause 1.5 amended

In clause 1.5—

- (a) in the definition for **Regulations** after "the", delete "Dog Regulations 1976" and insert "Dog Regulations 2013"; and
- (b) delete the definition for *restricted breed dog*.

5. Clause 2.4 amended

In clause 2.4 after "**Penalty:** Where the dog is a", delete "dangerous or restricted breed dog" and insert "dangerous dog".

6. Clause 3.1 amended

- (1) In clause 3.1(1)(c) after "premises" insert "(unless the gate is temporarily opened in a manner that ensures that the dog remains confined)".
- (2) In clause 3.1 after "Penalty: Where the dog kept is a", delete "dangerous or restricted breed dog" and insert "dangerous dog".

7. Clause 4.9 amended

In clause 4.9 delete "**Penalty:** Where a dog involved in the contravention is a dangerous or restricted breed dog, \$2,000 and a daily penalty of \$200, otherwise \$1,000 and a daily penalty of \$100." and insert "**Penalty:** \$5,000 and for each separate and further offence committed by the person under the *Interpretation Act 1984* section 71, a fine of \$100."

8. Clause 7.2 amended

- (1) In clause 7.2(2)—
 - (a) in subclause (a) delete "dangerous or restricted breed dog" and insert "dangerous dog"; and
 - (b) in subclause (b) delete "dangerous or restricted breed dog" and insert "dangerous dog".
- (2) In clause 7.2(3) delete "dangerous and restricted breed dog" and insert "dangerous dog".

9. Clause 7.3 amended

In clause 7.3 delete "Form 7" and insert "Form 8".

10. Clause 7.6 amended

In clause 7.6(1) delete "Form 8" and insert "Form 9".

11. Schedule 3 amended

Schedule 3 is amended as follows—

- (a) in the heading row delete "Dangerous or Restricted Breed Dog" and insert "Dangerous Dog";
- (b) in offence 3.1, delete "200" and insert "400"; and
- (c) in offence 4.9, delete "100" and insert "200".

Dated: 7 June 2016.

The Common Seal of the City of Stirling was affixed by authority of a resolution of the Council in the presence of—

 $\begin{array}{c} {\rm GIOVANNI\ ITALIANO\ JP,\ Mayor.} \\ {\rm STUART\ JARDINE,\ Chief\ Executive\ Officer.} \end{array}$

LG304*

Local Government Act 1995

Local Government (Bayswater and Swan - Change of Boundaries) Order 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council on the recommendation of the Minister for Local Government.

1. Citation

This order is the *Local Government (Bayswater and Swan - Change of Boundaries) Order 2016.*

2. Commencement

This order comes into operation as follows —

- (a) clauses 1 and 2 on the day on which this order is published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the order on 1 July 2016.

3. Terms used

In this order —

Authority has the meaning given in section 9.69(1) of the Act; *Deposited Plan*, followed by a number, means the deposited plan of that number —

- (a) lodged with the Authority; and
- (b) certified by an authorised land officer, as defined in section 9.69(1) of the Act; and

- (c) available
 - (i) in paper form at the Authority's head office; and
 - (ii) in electronic form on the Authority's official website.

4. District boundaries changed

- (1) The boundaries of the district of Bayswater are changed so that the district consists of the land delineated in red and coloured purple on Deposited Plan 408935 version 1.
- (2) The boundaries of the district of Swan are changed so that the district consists of the land delineated in red and coloured purple on Deposited Plan 408934 version 1.

5. Ward boundaries changed

- (1) The boundaries of the North Ward in the district of Bayswater are changed so that the ward consists of the land delineated in red and coloured blue on Deposited Plan 408945 version 1.
- (2) The boundaries of the Ballajura Ward in the district of Swan are changed so that the ward consists of the land delineated in red and coloured red on Deposited Plan 408944 version 1.

	R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.
_	

LG305*

Local Government Act 1995

Local Government (Wyndham-East Kimberley – Requirement for Council to Undertake Remedial Action) Order 2016

Made by the Minister for Local Government.

1. Citation

This order is the Local Government (Wyndham-East Kimberley – Requirement for Council to Undertake Remedial Action)
Order 2016.

2. Commencement

This order comes into operation on the day on which it is published in the *Gazette*.

3. Term used: local government

In this order —

local government means the local government of the Shire of Wyndham-East Kimberley.

4. Council required to undertake remedial action

- (1) Under section 8.15C(2)(d) of the Act, the Minister requires each member of the council of the local government to attend, and participate in good faith in, a programme of mediation with the other members of the council, the CEO and senior employees of the local government.
- The programme of mediation (2)
 - is to be approved, and conducted by a mediator appointed, by the Departmental CEO; and
 - (b) concludes when the mediator reports in writing to the Departmental CEO on the outcome of the programme.

T. SIMPSON. Minister for Local Government.

ROTTNEST ISLAND

RX301*

Rottnest Island Authority Act 1987

Rottnest Island Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2016

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

1. Citation

These regulations are the Rottnest Island Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2016.

2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the Gazette;
- (b) the rest of the regulations — on 1 July 2016.

3. Regulations amended

These regulations amend the Rottnest Island Regulations 1988.

4. Schedule 6 amended

(1) In Schedule 6 item 1 delete "\$50.50" and insert:

\$51.50

(2) In Schedule 6 item 2 delete "\$43.00" and insert:

\$44.00

5. Schedule 7 amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 7 Pt. 1 it. 1	\$41.50	\$42.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 1 it. 2	\$23.00	\$23.50
	\$52.00	\$53.00
Sch. 7 Pt. 1 it. 3	\$231.00	\$242.00
	\$262.50	\$275.00
	\$315.00	\$330.50
	\$525.00	\$551.00
Sch. 7 Pt. 1 it. 4	\$231.50	\$237.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 2 it. 5	\$50.50	\$52.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 2 it. 6	\$939.00	\$985.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 2 it. 6	\$94.50/m	\$98.50/m
Sch. 7 Pt. 2 it. 7A	\$21.00	\$21.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 2 it. 7B	\$262.00	\$268.50
Sch. 7 Pt. 3 it. 7	\$48.00/m	\$50.00/m

6. Schedule 8 amended

Amend Schedule 8 as set out in the Table.

Table

Delete	Insert
\$56.00	\$57.00
\$398.50/m	\$408.50/m
\$635.50/m	\$652.00/m

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

WORKCOVER

WC301*

Workers' Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981

Workers' Compensation and Injury Management (Section 10) Notice 2016

Made by the Minister under section 10 of the Act.

1. Citation

This notice is the Workers' Compensation and Injury Management (Section 10) Notice 2016.

2. Declaration of extended meaning of worker and employer

It is declared that, in the Act, *worker* includes a person who is a member of the clergy (an *ordained minister* or *accredited pastor*) of the church mentioned in the Table and, for the purposes of the Act, that church is deemed to be the employer of the ordained minister or accredited pastor.

Table

Uniting Church in Australia, Synod of Western Australia

The Uniting Church Centre

85-89 Edward Street

Perth WA 6000

3. Previous declaration cancelled

The declaration under the *Workers' Compensation and Assistance Act 1981-1983* section 10 published in the *Gazette* on 8 June 1984 at p. 1610 is cancelled.

M. MISCHIN, Minister for Commerce.

— PART 2 —

AGRICULTURE AND FOOD

AG401*

BIOSECURITY AND AGRICULTURE MANAGEMENT ACT 2007

BIOSECURITY AND AGRICULTURE MANAGEMENT (FEES AND CHARGES)
DETERMINATION 2016

Made by the Director General under the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013* regulation 125.

1. Citation

This determination is the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Fees and Charges) Determination 2016.

2. Commencement

This determination comes into operation as follows—

- (a) clauses 1 and 2—on the day on which this determination is published in the Gazette;
- (b) the rest of the determination—on 1 July 2016.

3. Revocation

The Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Fees and Charges) Determination 2015 is revoked.

4. Unit includes part of unit

In this determination a reference to a unit of a specified number of minutes includes a reference to part of that unit.

5. Determination of fees and charges

The fees and charges set out in the Tables are determined under the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013* regulation 125.

6. Fees and charges: Table 1

(1) In this clause—

Headquarters, in relation to an inspection, means the inspector's base location.

- (2) The fees and charges set out in Table 1 are determined for the following—
 - (a) the inspection and/or treatment of an organism, potential carrier or place;
 - (b) the assessment and verification, or issue, of documents required in relation to organisms and potential carriers;
 - (c) laboratory analysis of organisms and potential carriers;
 - (d) supply of products for the control of declared pests in relation to organisms and potential carriers.
- (3) The fees and charges set out in Table 1 are payable by the importer, exporter, owner or person in charge of the organism, potential carrier or place.
- (4) No fees or charges set out in Table 1 are payable for the following—
 - (a) the inspection, at road inspection points, of vehicles, agricultural products and animals kept as pets;
 - (b) the inspection of passengers and /or passengers' baggage at inspection points;
 - (c) the assessment of freight declarations conducted at road inspection points or the office of the Department of Agriculture and Food at 24 Fricker Road Perth Airport;
 - (d) the first 25km travel for inspection of an organism or potential carrier other than an animal in the metropolitan area;
 - (e) permits to introduce, move or supply a declared pest, provided that at the destination the pest is exempt from keeping requirements, or the destination is a Quarantine facility or a place at which that pest is authorized to be kept under a keeping permit;
 - (f) a surveillance inspection, being an inspection undertaken to determine the status of a place or thing regulated by or under the Act which is not an inspection to monitor compliance with import requirements, or compliance with a direction or authority given under this Act
 - (g) inspections funded by an Industry Funding Scheme established under regulations made under section 141 of the Act

Table 1 FEES AND CHARGES

Item	Description	Fee (\$)
1	Import permit (Permitted Organism Requiring Permit)	
	Application	75.00
2	Import Permit (Prohibited Organism)	
	Application	75.00
	Note: Import Permit will not be issued unless organism is to be kept at a Quarantine Facility or under a Keeping Permit.	
3	Import Permit (Unlisted Organism)	
	• Application	75.00
	Note: Import Permit will not be issued for an unlisted organism unless it is to be kept at a suitable facility.	
4	Import Permit for Potential Carrier	
	Application	75.00
5	Risk assessment for permit decision (per 15 minutes)	55.00
6	Permit to keep, breed or cultivate	a= aa
	Application Note: Polated importance will be about at advantage importance.	65.00
	Note: Related inspections will be charged at relevant inspection rates	
7	Trapping permit	
	(as required under regulation 45)	
	Application	65.00
8	Permits for the purposes of BAM Regulations Part 2 Division 2 & Division 3	
	e.g. Introduce (r17), move (r16), or supply (r25) a declared pest	a z 00
_	Application	65.00
9	Inspection of organism, potential carrier or place	
	Inside shift hours • per 15 minute unit	63.00
	• travel charge per 25 km or part thereof from headquarters	63.00
10	Inspection of organism, potential carrier or place	
	Contiguous with shift hours	
	• per 15 minute unit	78.00
	• travel charge per 25 km or part thereof from headquarters	78.00
11	Inspection of organism, potential carrier or place	
	Outside of, and not contiguous with, shift hours (including Saturday, Sunday and public holiday)	
	• any part of first 2 hours (minimum fee)	837.00
	• per 15 minute unit after first 2 hours	105.00
12	• travel charge per 25 km or part thereof from headquarters	105.00
12	Inspection, assessment and issue of import documentation (other than permits)	45.00
13	Issue of export certification	39.00
	Note: Related inspections will be charged at relevant inspection rates	
14	Verification of Export Health Certificate (stock)	63.00
15	Release from direction to test or treat	63.00
16	Laboratory analysis of plants	92.00
17	Insect/disease identification	39.00
18	Vehicle washdown	
	• small trailers and small vehicles	39.00
	• trucks (per deck)	74.00
	machinery (per 30 min unit)	106.00
19	Shipment processing fee (stock)	8

Item	Description	Fee (\$)
20	Consignment processing fee (stock)	63.00
21	Dip or spray for cattle tick (minimum fee) Or per animal treated (where sum is greater than the minimum fee)	30.25 3.90
22	Supply of Triclabendazole as a drench to control liver fluke in a potential carrier on import into State (minimum fee) Or per kg of body weight (where sum is greater than minimum fee)	32.50
	• < 35 kg	1.15
	• 36 - 100 kg	2.90
	• 101 - 300 kg	6.20
	• 300 - 600 kg	15.60
	• > 600 kg	18.00

7. Quarantine facility fees and charges: Table 2

(1) In this clause—

approved quarantine facility has the meaning given in the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013 regulation 3.

(2) The fees and charges set out in Table 2 are determined in relation to quarantine facilities.

Table 2
QUARANTINE FACILITY FEES AND CHARGES

Item	Description	Fee (\$)
1	Application for approval of, or renewal of approval of, a place as a quarantine facility: Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013 r. 107(3)	284.00
2	Audit of approved quarantine facility: per 15 minute unit (including travel)	72.00

8. Stock and apiaries fees: Table 3

The fees set out in Table 3 are determined for the purposes of the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Identification and Movement of Stock and Apiaries) Regulations 2013 (BAM (IMSA) Regulations)*.

Table 3 STOCK AND APIARIES FEES

Item	Description	BAM (IMSA) Regulations	Fee (\$)
1	Application for registration as owner of stock	r. 7(3)	75.00
2	Application for renewal of registration as owner of stock	r. 23(2)	75.00
3	Application or renewal for registration as beekeeper	r. 13(6)	75.00
4	Recording a Notice of Stock Mortgage	r. 28(3)(a)	75.00
5	Application for transfer of identifier	r. 27(3)(a)	75.00

9. Quality Assurance and Accreditation fees and charges: Table 4

(1) In this clause—

accreditation has the meaning given in the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Quality Assurance and Accreditation) Regulations 2013 regulation 7.

(2) The fees and charges set out in Table 4 are determined in relation to accreditation.

 ${\bf Table~4} \\ {\bf QUALITY~ASSURANCE~AND~ACCREDITATION~FEES~AND~CHARGES} \\$

Item	Description	Fee (\$)
1	Application for accreditation, or renewal of accreditation: Biosecurity and Agriculture Management (Quality Assurance and Accreditation) Regulations 2013 r. 7(2)	284.00
2	Audit of accreditation: per 15 minute unit (including travel)	72.00

MARK WEBB, A/Director General.

Dated: 14 June 2016.

AG402*

SOIL AND LAND CONSERVATION ACT 1945

CAPEL LAND CONSERVATION DISTRICT (APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS OF DISTRICT COMMITTEE) INSTRUMENT 2016

Made by the Commissioner of Soil and Land Conservation.

1. Citation

This Instrument may be cited as the Capel Land Conservation District (Appointment of Members) Instrument 2016.

2. Appointment of members

Under section 23(2b) of the Act and clause 5(1) of the Soil and Land Conservation (Capel Land Conservation District) Order 1993*, the following members are appointed to the land conservation district committee for the Capel Land Conservation District—

- (a) as persons actively engaged in, or affected by or associated with, land use in the district—
 - (i) delete—Lynne King of Gelorup and Marylyn Yugovich of Capel
 - (ii) insert—Sandra Manley of Capel, Chelsea Ellen Rusha of Capel and Jacquie Rusha of Capel

(*Published in the *Gazette* of 23 April 1993 at pp.2170-2172 and Amendment Orders approved by Executive Council on 2 July 1996, 13 August 1996 and 1 December 1998 (refer to Department of Agriculture and Food reference: 125219V1)).

3. Term of office

Members appointed to the committee under this instrument will hold office for a term expiring on 15 June 2019.

ANDREW WATSON, Commissioner of Soil and Land Conservation.

Dated this 15th day of June 2016.

HERITAGE

HR401*

HERITAGE OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA ACT 1990

ENTRY OF PLACES IN THE REGISTER OF HERITAGE PLACES

PROPOSED INTERIM REGISTRATION (PRIVATE)

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 49(1) of the *Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990* that, pursuant to a direction from the Minister for Heritage, it is proposed that the place described below be entered in the Register of Heritage Places on a permanent basis. The Heritage Council invites submissions on the proposal, which must be in writing and should be forwarded to the address below not later than 29 July 2016. The place will be entered in the Register on an interim basis with effect from today in accordance with section 50(1) of the *Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990*.

Attunga Flats at 103 Thomas Street, Subiaco; Lot 136 on DP 352 being the whole of the land in C/T V 169 F 71.

PROPOSED INTERIM REGISTRATIONS (CROWN AND PRIVATE)

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 47(5) of the *Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990*, that the Heritage Council has advised the Minister for Heritage regarding registration of crown property that it has resolved that—

- 1. the place listed below is of cultural heritage significance, and is of value for the present community and future generations;
- 2. the protection afforded by the Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990 is appropriate; and
- 3. the place should be entered in the Register of Heritage Places on a permanent basis.

Notice is hereby given that the place below will be entered in the Register of Heritage Places on an interim basis with effect from today in accordance with section 50(1)(b) of the *Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990*. The place listed below is wholly or partly vested in the Crown, or in a person on behalf of the Crown, in right of the State.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Section 49(1) of the *Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990* that, pursuant to a direction from the Minister for Heritage, it is proposed that the place described below be entered in the Register of Heritage Places on a permanent basis. The Heritage Council

invites submissions on the proposal, which must be in writing and should be forwarded to the address below not later than 29 July 2016.

Riverbank Detention Centre (fmr), Caversham at 130 Hamersley Road, Caversham; Res 33481 being Lot 9332 on Diagram 14007 and being the whole of the land in CLT V 3016 F 43.

GRAEME GAMMIE, Executive Director, Department of the State Heritage Office, Bairds Building, 491 Wellington Street, Perth WA 6000.

17 June 2016.

JUSTICE

JU401*

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE ACT 2004

APPOINTMENTS

It is hereby notified for public information that Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has approved of the following to the Office of Justice of the Peace for the State of Western Australia—

Terrence George Quin-Conroy of Booragoon

Perry Kenneth Hodgkiss of Bruce Rock

JOANNE STAMPALIA, A/Executive Director, Court and Tribunal Services.

JU402*

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE ACT 2004

RESIGNATION

It is hereby notified for public information that the Minister has accepted the resignation of— Mr Michael William Dew of Darkan

from the Office of Justice of the Peace for the State of Western Australia.

JOANNE STAMPALIA, A/Executive Director, Court and Tribunal Services.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

LG401*

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995

City of Cockburn (BASIS OF RATES)

This notice, which is for public information only, is to confirm that—

I, Brad Jolly, being delegated by the Minister of the Crown to whom the administration of the *Local Government Act 1995* is committed by the Governor, and acting pursuant to section 6.28 (1) of that Act, hereby, and with effect from 12 May 2016, determine that the method of valuation to be used by the City of Cockburn as the basis for a rate in respect of the land referred to in the Schedule is to be the gross rental value of the land.

Schedule

	Designated Land
UV to GRV	All those portions of land being Lots 1 to 39 inclusive as shown on Deposited Plan 405773.

LG402*

SHIRE OF AUGUSTA MARGARET RIVER

APPOINTMENT

It is hereby notified for public information that the Shire of Augusta Margaret River has appointed the following officer—

Amanda Price—Ranger

as an Authorised Person of the Shire of Augusta Margaret River pursuant to the following—

Part XX of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1960 as Pound Keeper and Ranger;

Section 3.37-3.48, 9.10, 9.16, of the Local Government Act 1995;

Dog Act 1976 (as amended) and Regulations (as amended);

Control of Vehicles (Off-road Areas) Act 1978 (as amended) and Regulations;

Litter Act 1979 (as amended) and Regulations;

Bush Fires Act 1954 (as amended) and Regulations;

Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Act 1995 (as amended) and Regulations 1997;

Cat Act 2011 and Regulations (as amended)

All Shire of Augusta Margaret River Local Laws.

It is further notified that the appointment of Carl Robertson is hereby cancelled effective immediately.

All existing appointments are in effect until such time as the Council or CEO determines to revoke any authorisation stated or upon cessation of employment of the authorised officer with the Shire of Augustan Margaret River.

GARY EVERSHED, Chief Executive Officer.

LG403*

HEALTH ACT 1911

Shire of Mount Magnet

Notice Issued under Sections 135, 137, 138, and 140

TO: Alma Lesley Rivers also known as Alma Lesley Horsfield

OF: 17 Withnell Street, Northam WA 6401 AND OF: 66 Withers Street, Northam WA 6401

AND OF: Alma Lesley Rivers also known as Alma Lesley Horsfield

By this Notice being affixed to the house on

34 - 36 Watson Street Mount Magnet WA 6638

Background

- 1. You are the registered owner of-
 - (a) 34 Watson Street Mount Magnet, being Lot 230 on Deposited Plan 129017 the whole of the land in Certificate of Title Volume 1310 Folio 771; and
 - (b) 36 Watson Street Mount Magnet, being Lot 229 on Deposited Plan 129017 the whole of the land in Certificate of Title Volume 1310 Folio 770,

(collectively the Property)

2. The Property is situated within the district of the Shire of Mount Magnet (Shire)

Now Take Notice That—

3. By virtue of the powers conferred under the provisions of the *Health Act 1911* (as amended), the Council of the Shire DECLARES that pursuant to section 135(1) of the *Health Act 1911* the house located on the Property is Unfit For Human Habitation.

Take Further Notice That—

- 4. Under section 135(2) of the *Health Act 1911*, you shall secure the house from entry by any unauthorised persons, and prevent the house and all associated buildings and infrastructure located on the Property from being occupied after 30 May 2016.
- 5. Under section 137 of the *Health Act 1911* within 60 days of service of this Notice on you, you shall demolish and remove the house from the Property.
- 6. Under section 138 of the *Health Act 1911*, within 60 days of service of this Notice on you, you shall clear the land on the Property to the satisfaction of the Shire and remove all rubbish to the licensed landfill of the Shire of Mount Magnet.

Please Note That-

- 1. It is an offence under section 136 of the *Health Act 1911* to inhabit, occupy, or suffer to be inhabited or occupied, a house or portion of a house that has been declared to be unfit for human habitation,
- 2. Section 140 of the *Health Act 1911* enables the Shire to carry out the terms of this Notice if you do not comply with this Notice by the times specified in this Notice.
- 3. Section 140 of the *Health Act 1911* enables the Shire to recover from you, in a court of competent jurisdiction, all expenses incurred when carrying out the terms of this Notice.

Review

If you are dissatisfied with the requisitions in this Notice, you may within twenty eight (28) days of the date of service of this Notice on you, apply to the State Administrative Tribunal for a review of the decision. The contact details for the State Administrative Tribunal are set out at the end of this Direction Notice.

Issued by and under the direction of Council.

Dated this 30th day of May 2016.

WARREN OLSEN, Chief Executive Officer, Shire of Mount Magnet.

Contact details for the State Administrative Tribunal

Application for review forms can be obtained from the State Administrative Tribunal as follows—

Online: http://www.sat.justice.wa.gov.au by using the SAT Wizard

In Person: Level 6, 565 Hay Street, Perth 6000 By Post: GPO Box U 1991, Perth 6845 By Phone: 1300 306 017 or (08) 9219 3111

MINERALS AND PETROLEUM

MP101*

CORRECTION

MINING ACT 1978

INTENTION TO FORFEIT

The notice at page 1809 of the $Government\ Gazette$ dated 10 June 2016 to be corrected as follows—

M47/238 Barrick (Australia Pacific) Ptv Limited

Kalgoorlie Lake View Pty Ltd

TO

M47/238 Venturex Pilbara Pty Ltd

MP401*

MINING ACT 1978

FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, East Perth WA 6004.

I hereby declare in accordance with the provisions of section 96A of the *Mining Act 1978* that the undermentioned exploration licences are forfeited for breach of covenant, being non-payment of rent.

Hon SEAN L'ESTRANGE MLA, Minister for Mines and Petroleum; Small Business.

Tenement Holder Mineral Field
EXPLORATION LICENCE

E15/1175 Kurana Pty Ltd Coolgardie

MP402*

MINING ACT 1978

RESTORATION OF EXPLORTION LICENCE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, EAST PERTH WA 6004.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 97A of the *Mining Act 1978*, I hereby cancel the forfeiture of the undermentioned Exploration Licence previously forfeited for non-payment of penalty and restore the Exploration Licence to the former holder.

Hon SEAN L'ESTRANGE MLA, Minister for Mines and Petroleum; Small Business.

Tenement	Holder	Mineral Field
	EXPLORATION LICENCE	
E37/1168	Earth Australia Minerals Pty Ltd	Mt Margaret

MP403*

MINING ACT 1978

APPROVAL OF RETENTION STATUS FOR AN EXPLORATION LICENCE

I, Ann Robertson, Compliance Tenure Officer (by power delegated under section 12 of the *Mining Act 1978*), give notice that I have approved retention status for 9 blocks within the under mentioned exploration licence pursuant to section 69B of the *Mining Act 1978*, effective from the day on which notice of the approval is published in the *Gazette*.

Tenement	Blocks		Holder	Mineral Field
E47/2052	2661	lmnqr stwx	Atlas Iron Limited	West Pilbara

Dated at Perth this 14th day of June 2016.

ANN ROBERTSON, Compliance Tenure Officer, (by power delegated under section 12 of the *Mining Act 1978*).

MP404*

MINING ACT 1978

APPROVAL OF RETENTION STATUS FOR AN EXPLORATION LICENCE

I, Ann Robertson, Compliance Tenure Officer (by power delegated under section 12 of the *Mining Act 1978*), give notice that I have approved retention status for 2 blocks within the under mentioned exploration licence pursuant to section 69B of the *Mining Act 1978*, effective from the day on which notice of the approval is published in the *Gazette*.

Tenement	Blocks		Holder	Mineral Field
E47/2054	2735	h n	Atlas Iron Limited	West Pilbara

Dated at Perth this 14th day of June 2016.

ANN ROBERTSON, Compliance Tenure Officer, (by power delegated under section 12 of the $\it Mining Act 1978$)

MP405*

MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Kalgoorlie WA 6430.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable to forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for breach of covenant, being failure to comply with the prescribed expenditure conditions and/or non-compliance with the reporting provisions.

To be heard by the Warden at Kalgoorlie on 12 August 2016.

BROAD ARROW MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 24/4671	Tucker, Anthony John
P 24/4760	Bonser, Roanne Elizabeth
P 24/4761	Smith, Steven Bradly
P 24/4763	Bonser, Roanne Elizabeth

N. E. COOLGARDIE MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 27/1976 Binder, Steven Mark
P 27/2178 Cotton, Dale Kane
McCrorie, Peter David
Donnellan, Paul Anthony

P 27/2179 Cotton, Dale Kane

Donnellan, Paul Anthony McCrorie, Peter David

MP406*

MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Kalgoorlie WA 6430.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable for forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for non payment of rent.

J. O'SULLIVAN, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Kalgoorlie on 12 August 2016.

N. E. COOLGARDIE MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 27/2180-S Wicks, Shane Raymond P 27/2206 Rolfe, Antony John

NORTH COOLGARDIE MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 30/1042 Carnegie Gold Pty Ltd P 30/1043 Carnegie Gold Pty Ltd P 30/1060 Carnegie Gold Pty Ltd

MP407*

MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Coolgardie WA 6429.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable to forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for breach of covenant, being failure to comply with the prescribed expenditure conditions and/or non-compliance with the reporting provisions.

J. O'SULLIVAN, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Coolgardie on 12 August 2016.

COOLGARDIE MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 15/5675	Musketeer Minerals Pty Ltd
P 16/2838	Cascade Resources Ltd
P 16/2840	Cascade Resources Ltd

MP408*

MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Coolgardie WA 6429.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable for forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for non payment of rent.

J. O'SULLIVAN, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Coolgardie on 12 August 2016.

COOLGARDIE MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 15/5002 Evolution Mining (Mungari) Pty Ltd

MP409*

MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Marble Bar WA 6760.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable to forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for breach of covenant, being failure to comply with the prescribed expenditure conditions and/or non-compliance with the reporting provisions.

M. RIDLEY, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Marble Bar on 12 August 2016.

PILBARA MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 45/2744 Mallina Exploration Pty Ltd P 45/2745 Mallina Exploration Pty Ltd

PLANNING

PL401*

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED DISTRICT PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

City of Joondalup

District Planning Scheme No. 2—Amendment No. 65

Ref: TPS/1078

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the City of Joondalup District Planning Scheme amendment on 7 June 2016 for the purpose of—

- 1. Modifying clause 1.2 by adding 'or "local government" 'after ' "Council" '.
- 2. Inserting the use class 'Betting Agency' to Table 1 and allocate a 'D' use within the Business, Commercial and Private Clubs and Recreation zones and an 'X' use within all remaining zones.
- 3. Inserting the use class 'Industry—Service' to Table 1 and allocate a 'P' use within the Service Industrial zone and an 'X' use within all remaining zones.
- 4. Renaming the existing use class of 'Warehouse' to 'Warehouse/Storage' in Table 1.

- 5. Inserting the use class 'Small Bar' to Table 1 and allocate a 'P' use within the Commercial and Private Clubs/Recreation zones, a 'D' use in the Business and Mixed Use zones and an 'X' use in all remaining zones.
- 6. Modifying the use class 'Cinema' in Table 1 by adding the word '/Theatre' after 'Cinema'.
- 7. Deleting the use class 'Beauty Parlour' from Table 1.
- 8. Deleting the use class 'Cinema Complex' from Table 1.
- 9. Deleting the use class 'Department Store' from Table 1.
- 10. Deleting the use class 'Hairdresser' from Table 1.
- 11. Deleting the use class 'Hall' from Table 1.
- 12. Deleting the use class 'Park' from Table 1.
- 13. Deleting the use class 'Sports Ground' from Table 1.
- 14. Deleting the use class 'Theatre' from Table 1.
- 15. Deleting the use class 'Car sales premises' from Table 2.
- 16. Inserting 'Betting Agency' under the use class 'Aged or dependent persons dwelling' in the use class column and allocating '1 per 50m² NLA' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 17. Inserting 'Cinema/Theatre' under the use class 'Child Care Centre' in the use class column and allocating '1 per 4 seats' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 18. Inserting 'Convenience Store' under the use class 'Consulting Rooms' in the use class column and allocating '4 per 100m² NLA' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2
- 19. Inserting 'Educational Establishment (other)' under the use class 'Drive Through Food Outlet' in the use class column and allocating '1 per 3 persons accommodated' under the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 20. Inserting 'Hardware Store' under the use class 'Grouped Dwelling' in the use class column and allocating 1 per 30m² NLA' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 21. Inserting 'Landscape Supplies' under the use class 'Land Sales Office' in the use class column and allocating '1 per 500m² display area plus 1 per employee' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 22. Inserting 'Small Bar' under the use class 'Single House' in the use class column and allocating '1 per 4 persons accommodated' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 23. Inserting 'Transport Depot' under the use class 'Tertiary College' in the use class column and allocating '1 per employee' under the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 24. Inserting 'Vehicle Panel Beating/Spray Painting & Vehicle Repairs' under the use class 'Transport Depot' in the use class column and Inserting '1 per 50m² NLA' under the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 25. Inserting 'Warehouse/Storage' under the use class 'Veterinary Consulting Rooms or Hospital' in the use class column and Inserting '1 per 50m² NLA' under the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column in Table 2.
- 26. Modifying the use class 'Office' in Table 2 by substituting '30' with '50' in the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column.
- 27. Modifying the use class 'Place of Assembly' in Table 2 by substituting 'seats' with 'persons accommodated' in the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column.
- 28. Modifying the use class 'Public Worship' in Table 2 by deleting the word 'Public' and inserting the word 'Place of' and by substituting 'seats' with 'persons accommodated' in the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column.
- 29. Modifying the use class 'Shopping Centres under 10,000m² in Table 2 by inserting the use class 'Shop' in front of 'Shopping Centres under 10,000m² and by deleting the number '10,000' and replacing with the number '30,000' and by substituting '7' with '5' in the Number of Onsite Car Parking Bays column.
- 30. Deleting the use class 'Shopping Centres from 10,000m2 to 30,000m2 from Table 2.
- 31. Modifying the use class 'Shopping Centres from 30,000m² to 50,000m² in Table 2 by deleting the number '1950' and replacing with the number '1500' and by deleting the number '5.25' and replacing with the number '4.5' in the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column.
- 32. Modifying the use class 'Shopping Centres greater than 50,000m² in Table 2 by deleting the number '3000' and replacing with the number '2400' and by deleting the number '4.8' ' and replacing with the number '4' in the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column.
- 33. Modifying the use class 'Showrooms' in Table 2 by renaming it to 'Bulky Goods Showroom' and substituting '30' with '50' in the Number of On-site Car Parking Bays column.
- 34. Inserting the following new definitions into Schedule 1
 - betting agency: means an office or totalisator agency established under the Racing and Wagering Western Australia Act 2003;

cinema/theatre: means premises where the public may view a motion picture or theatrical production.

warehouse/storage: means premises including indoor or outdoor facilities used for-

- (a) the storage of goods, equipment, plant or materials; or
- (b) the display or sale by wholesale of goods.

small bar: means premises the subject of a small bar licence granted under the Liquor Control Act 1988.

35. Deleting the following definitions from Schedule 1—

beauty parlour: means any land or buildings used for beauty therapy purposes.

cinema: means any land or building containing a single cinema screen where the public may view a motion picture.

cinema complex: means any land or building where the public may view a motion picture, and many include more than one cinema screen, and may include other minor and subsidiary amusements.

department store: means a shop which consists of a substantial number of different departments carrying a significant range of goods in each department.

theatre: means any land or buildings where the public may view a theatrical production.

36. Modifying the following definitions in Schedule 1—

Modifying the 'shop' definition in Schedule 1 by deleting the definition and inserting the Model Scheme Text definition as follows— $\,$

shop: means premises other than a bulky good showroom, a liquor store—large or a liquor store—small used to sell goods by retail, to hire goods, or to provide services of a personal nature, including hairdressing or beauty therapy services.

Modifying the 'showroom' definition in Schedule 1 by deleting the definition and inserting the State Planning Policy 4.2 definition as follows—

bulky goods showroom: means premises—

- (a) Used to sell by retail any of the goods and accessories of the following types that are principally used for domestic purposes—
 - (i) automotive parts and accessories;
 - (ii) camping, outdoor and recreation goods;
 - (iii) electric light fittings;
 - (iv) animal supplies including equestrian and pet goods;
 - (v) floor and window coverings;
 - (vi) furniture, bedding, furnishings, fabrics, manchester and homewares;
 - (vii) household appliances, electrical goods and home entertainment goods;
 - (viii) party supplies;
 - (ix) office equipment and supplies;
 - (x) babies' and childrens' goods, including play equipment and accessories;
 - (xi) sporting, cycling, leisure, fitness goods and accessories;
 - (xiii) swimming pools;

or

- (b) used to sell by retail goods and accessories by retail if—
 - (i) a large area is required for the handling, display or storage of the goods; or
 - (ii) vehicular access is required to the premises for the purpose of collection of purchased goods.

Modifying the 'home business—category 1' definition by—

inserting after 'does not entail employment of any other person' the words ',except a member of the household' to paragraph (d).

deleting the words '......20m² or where more than one resident is involved not cause the area used for home business within the dwelling to occupy an area greater than $30m^2$ and replacing with ' $30m^2$ ' to paragraph (e).

37. Delete Clause 4.12.1 and replace with-

'A minimum of 8% of the area of a development site shall be designed, developed and maintained as landscaping. In addition, the owner of the lot on which the development is located shall landscape the road verge(s) adjacent to that lot. Prior to occupation of a development, the owner of the lot on which the development is located shall landscape the development site and the road verge(s) adjacent to the lot and thereafter maintain the landscaping and keep the road verge in a clean and tidy condition to the satisfaction of the Council.'

38. Modifying the use class 'showroom' in Table 1 by adding the words 'bulky goods' before 'showroom'.

T. PICKARD, Mayor. G. HUNT, Chief Executive Officer.

PL402*

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

City of Albany

Local Planning Scheme No. 1—Amendment No. 8

Ref: TPS/1615

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the City of Albany Local Planning Scheme amendment on the 16 May 2016 for the purpose of—

- 1. Rezoning Lot 103 Cockburn road, Mira Mar on Deposited Plan 300002 from "Residential R30" to :Regional Centre Mixed Business" in accordance with the Scheme Amendment Map.
- 2. Rezoning Lot 104 Campbell Road, Mira Mar on Deposited Plan 300002 from "Residential R30" with 'Additional Use AU17 Medical Centre" to "Regional Centre Mixed Business" in accordance with the Scheme Amendment Map.
- 3. Amending the Scheme Map accordingly.

D. WELLINGTON, Mayor. A. SHARPE, Chief Executive Officer.

PL404*

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED TOWN PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

Shire of Northampton

Town Planning Scheme No. 9—Amendment No. 11

Ref: TPS/1563

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the Shire of Northampton Town Planning Scheme amendment on 16 May 2016 for the purpose of—

- 1. Including the provision for 'Urban Development Zone' in the Scheme and amending the relevant sections of the Scheme to accommodate this new provision. These amendment include—
 - 1.1 Inclusion of the following text at 3.1.2.10
 - 3.1.2.10 Urban Development Zone

"To provide for comprehensive planning of development through a structure plan to facilitate subdivision and development."

1.2 Replace '5.27 OPERATION OF SPECIAL CONTROL AREA' with the following—

"5.27 URBAN DEVELOPMENT ZONE"

- 5.27.1 The local government is not to—
 - (e) consider recommending subdivision; or
 - (f) approve development of land;

unless a structure plan in respect of the area the subject to the application, has been prepared and approved pursuant to Clause 5.28 Structure Planning Areas, and the subdivision and development of land shall be generally in accordance with the structure plan.

- 5.27.2 Notwithstanding clause 5.27.1 the local government may recommend subdivision or approved development without a structure plan, if in the opinion of the local government, such development is of a minor nature and will not prejudice the future structure planning of the site or zone.
- 1.3 Rename '5.28 Development Areas' to '5.28 Structure Planning Areas'.
- 1.4 At Clause '5.28.1 Interpretations' include the following text—

"structure planning area" is an area that requires structure planning and may be required in any zone.

- 1.5 Rename '5.28.2 from 'Purpose of Development Areas' to 'Purpose of Structure Planning Area.'
- 1.6 Delete Clause 5.28.2.2 and 'Appendix 11—'Development Area' from the Scheme text.
- $1.7\ {\rm Rename\ Clause\ }5.28.3$ from 'Subdivision and Development in Development Areas' to 'Structure Planning Areas.'
- 1.8 Delete Clause 5.28.3.1 and renumber the following clause accordingly.
- $1.9\ {\rm from}\ {\rm Clause}\ 5.28.3$ to 5.28.6 (inclusive), change all references to 'Development Areas' to 'Structure Planning Areas'.
- 2. Deletion of 'Special Control Areas' (SCA1) and (SCA2) from the Scheme.
- 3. Rezoning Lots 9502 and 9505 George Grey Drive from 'Rural' to 'Urban Development' zone.

- 4. Amending the provisions in Appendix 7—Special Use Zones as it relates to No. 5 (SU5) to include the use 'Aged or Dependent Persons' Dwelling' within the Special Use Zone.
- 5. Rezoning of Lot 112 Flora Boulevard from 'Special Use' (SU5) to 'Commercial'.
- 6. Rezoning of Lot 118 Flora Boulevard from 'Commercial' to 'Residential R40'.
- 7. Rezoning Lot 106 Clematis Crescent, Kalbarri from 'Residential R20' to 'Residential R40'.
- 8. Amending the Scheme Maps accordingly.

C. A. SIMKIN, President. G. L. KEEFFE, Chief Executive Officer.

PL403*

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

City of Swan

Local Planning Scheme No. 17—Amendment No. 115

Ref: TPS/1445

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the $Planning\ and\ Development\ Act\ 2005$ that the Minister for Planning approved the City of Swan Local Planning Scheme amendment on 7 June 2016 for the purpose of—

- a. Reclassifying the portions of land in the approved Morgan Fields Outlines Development Plan No. 68 (as amended) from 'Special Use Zone No. 4—Ellenbrook Estate' to the reserves and zones (with Residential Density codings where applicable) as shown on the Amendment Map.
- b. Introducing a new Scheme Map 12D and modifying the scheme maps, special control area maps and scheme legend accordingly.
- c. Modifying the 'Description of Land' in Schedule 4—Special Use Zone 4 Ellenbrook Estate by deleting the following text—

"Land generally bounded by the proposed Perth—Darwin Highway road reservation to the west and Maralla Road to the north, predominantly north of Gnangara Road, in the localities of Ellenbrook, Henley Brook and The Vines, as delineated on the scheme maps".

And, inserting the following text in its place—

"Land generally bounded by the approved Perth—Darwin Highway road reservation to the west and Maralla Road to the north, in the localities of Ellenbrook, as delineated on the scheme map."

d. Removing the following land parcels from Schedule 4—Special Use Zone 4 Condition 5 under the heading listed below—

LocationLot DescriptionArea"Morgan FieldsPOS Lot 90295.791ha"

M. WAINWRIGHT, President/Mayor. M. FOLEY, Chief Executive Officer.

PL405*

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

METROPOLITAN REGION SCHEME MINOR AMENDMENT 1287/57 LOTS 212, 852 AND 854 LAKE ROAD, CHAMPION LAKES

Notice of Approved Amendment

File: 833-2-22-74

The Minister for Planning has approved, as advertised, the abovementioned amendment to the Metropolitan Region Scheme. The amendment is shown on Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) plan number 3.2612 and is effective from the date of publication of this notice in the *Government Gazette*.

Copies of the amendment and the accompanying report on submissions are available for public inspection from Friday $17\,\mathrm{June}\ 2016$ to Friday $15\,\mathrm{July}\ 2016$ at—

- Western Australian Planning Commission, 140 William Street, Perth
- J S Battye Library, Level 3 Alexander Library Building, Perth Cultural Centre
- City of Armadale

 $Documents\ are\ also\ available\ from\ the\ Planning WA\ website\ www.planning.wa.gov.au.$

PREMIER AND CABINET

PR401*

INTERPRETATION ACT 1984

MINISTERIAL ACTING ARRANGEMENTS

It is hereby notified for public information that the Deputy of the Governor, in accordance with Section 52(1)(b) of the *Interpretation Act 1984* has approved the following temporary appointment—

Hon J. H. D. Day MLA to act temporarily in the office of Minister for Agriculture and Food; Transport in the absence of the Hon D. C. Nalder MLA for the period 4 to 8 July 2016 (both dates inclusive).

PETER CONRAN, Director General, Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

DECEASED ESTATES

ZX401*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estates of the undermentioned deceased persons, are required to send particulars of their claim to Australian Executor Trustees Limited of Level 28, 152-158 St George's Terrace, Perth on or before the expiration of one month from the date of publication of this notice after which date the Company may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which it then has notice.

Elliott, Kathleen Myra, late of Villa Pelletier Nursing Home, 48 Ruislip Street, West Leederville, Home Duties, who died on 5 December 2015.

Dunlop, Betty Doreen, late of 14/22 Fantail Drive, Bibra Lake, Widow, who died on 30 April 2016.

McGregor, Leah Anne, late of Bethanie Waters, 18 Olivenza Crescent, Port Kennedy (formerly of Villa 183 Stockland Village, 38 Norwood Avenue, Baldivis), Aged Pensioner, who died on 22 April 2016.

Garcia, Gertrude Lois, late of 6 Railway Street, Cottesloe, Widow, who died on 21 April 2016.

Rixson, Edna, late of 26 Keston Place, Gosnells, Retired Teacher, who died on 4 May 2016.

Terry, John Gerard, late of 9 Springwood Way, Woodvale, Retired, who died on 8 May 2016.

Dated: 13 June 2016.

STEVEN PASS, Estates and Trusts Manager.

ZX402*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

In the matter of the Estate of John Albert Smedley, late of 117A Watkins Street, White Gum Valley in the State of Western Australia, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the Estate of the deceased, who died on the 12th day of January 2016, are required by the Administrators, Alyson Edith May and Elis John Smedley to send the particulars of their claim to Messrs Taylor Smart of 1 Regal Place, East Perth in the State of Western Australia, by the 17th day of July 2016, after which date the said Administrators may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which they then have had notice.

Dated the 10th day of June 2016.

ZX403*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of Christine Elizabeth Jones, late of 16 Bluegum Road, Morley, Western Australia, who died on 26 October 2015, are required by the Executor to send particulars of their claims to care of David Ridley, Executor, 13 Sunshine Road, Austins Ferry, Tasmania 7011 within one (1) month of the date of publication hereof, after which date the Executor may convey or distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which the Executor then has notice.

Dated: 14 June 2016.

ZX404*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Dan Bozanic, late of St Ives Murdoch, 20 Windelya Road, Murdoch, Western Australia.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 10 April 2013, are required by the Trustee, David Morgan Lewis of Lewis Blyth & Hooper of Fourth Floor, Garden City House, 125 Riseley Street, Booragoon, Western Australia to send particulars of their claims to him by the 17th day of July 2016, after which date the Trustee may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which he then has notice.

ZX405*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Nurie Del-Carmen Bozanic (also known as Nurie Del Carmen Bozanic), late of St Ives Murdoch, 20 Windelya Road, Murdoch, Western Australia.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 7 November 2013, are required by the Trustee, David Morgan Lewis of Lewis Blyth & Hooper of Fourth Floor, Garden City House, 125 Riseley Street, Booragoon, Western Australia to send particulars of their claims to him by the 17th day of July 2016, after which date the Trustee may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which he then has notice.

ZX406*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

In the matter of the Estate of Enid Rawlinson, late of 17 Valheru Avenue, Rockingham in the State of Western Australia, Widow, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 13 February 2016, are required by the Executrix of care of Fort Knox Legal, PO Box 390, West Perth in Western Australia, to send the particulars of their claims to Fort Knox Legal by 3 August 2016, after which date the Executrix may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which she then has notice.

ZX407*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the Estates of the undermentioned deceased persons are required to send particulars of their claims to me on or before 17 July 2016, after which date I may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which I then have notice.

Anquetil, Georges Andre Denis, late of 1 Fir Court, Camillo, died 6.12.2015 (DE33026280 EM113)

Cooke, William Also Known As Bill Cooke, late of 6 Hybrid Court, Banjup, formerly of 16/51 Moo 9 NongPrue, Banglamung, Chonburi 20150 Thailand, died 22.03.2016 (DE19850441 EM22)

Corker, Dorothy, Also Known As Dot Corker, late of 15 Stewart Street, Mandurah, died 6.04.2016 (DE33130132 EM24)

Dettenmaier, Jannetta Joan, late of 62 Charnwood Street, Morley, died 22.05.2016 (DE19751275 EM15)

Ellis, Beatrice Elizabeth, late of Parkview Aged Care, 6 Drummond Street, Redcliffe, died 17.04.2016 (DE19831945 EM38)

Hyman, James Tony, Also Known As James Tony Councillor, late of no fixed address, died 27.10.2014 (DE33131402 EM36)

Isitt, Fay Lillian, late of 21 Livingstone Drive, Canning Vale, died 22.02.2016 (DE19770309 EM17)

Matulovic, Marija, late of 11B Grjlusich Place, Spearwood, died 30.04.2016 (DE20001965 EM13)

O'Connor, Kenneth John, late of Unit 3, 9 Heron Place, Maddington, died 22.05.2016 (DE19940231 EM313)

Wood, Elaine, late of Rex Beal Units, Unit 3, 3 Tipuana Green, O'Connor, died 3.04.2016 (DE33084174 EM22)

BRIAN ROCHE, Public Trustee, 553 Hay Street, Perth WA 6000. Telephone: 1300 746 212

PUBLIC NOTICES

ZZ401*

DISPOSAL OF UNCOLLECTED GOODS ACT 1970

DISPOSAL OF UNCOLLECTED GOODS

This Notice is to the Owner of Vehicle Registration 1CXQ 667, Ford Territory 2008.

We, Citywest Automatic Transmissions intend to apply to the Court for an Order to Sell or otherwise Dispose of this vehicle, as it has been in our mechanical workshop since October 2015, and have made numerous attempts to contact owner to no avail.

ZZ402*

TRUSTEES ACT 1962

MAB DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY TRUST ARSN 103 463 467 (TRUST)

Trustee and Responsible Entity: MAB Funds Management Limited ABN 36 098 846 701 (Trustee)

Creditors and others having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the Trust, a registered managed investment scheme, are required by the Trustee of Level 5, 441 St Kilda Road, Melbourne, Victoria 3004 to send particulars to the Trustee by the 17th day of March 2016, after which date the Trustee may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which the Trustee then has notice.